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STATE OF M CH GAN
COUNTY OF OTTAVWA

IN RE:  SWSS VI LLAGE SUB DRAI' N

BOARD OF DETERM NATI ON

Proceedi ngs comenced at 11:30 a.m, on Thursday,
Decenber 5, 2019, at the Barber School Community Buil ding,
102 West Exchange Street, Spring Lake, M chigan, held before
Marjorie A Covey, CSR-2616, Certified Shorthand Reporter and

Not ary Publi c.

APPEARANCES:

M. Joe Bush, Otawa County WAter Resources Comm ssioner
M. Chad Meints, Chief Deputy to Water Resources Conm
Ms. Sara Hrts, Secretary

Ken Souter, Board Chairnman

Ri ch Vander Kl ok, Board Secretary

Ron Brink, Board Menber

Gordon Gal | agher, Spring Lake Townshi p Manager

Jerry A man, OQtawa County Road Conm ssion

s 5 5 555

Ryan McEnhill, P.E., Eng. Engineering
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Spring Lake, M chigan
Decenber 5, 2019 - 11:30 a.m
PROCEEDI NGS

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH. Good norni ng.
Vel cone to a Board OF Determ nation, a public hearing,
because we were petitioned by the Township of Spring Lake for
sonme i nprovenent over in Swiss Village Drain District. So
and that's why we're here today. You guys wal ked into the
ot her one at 10 o' clock, so, again, we welcone you to sit and
listen to why we're here. And it's all part of Drain Code
which is state | aw

We got to have a public hearing to hear testinony
on whet her people are having problens or they' re not having
probl ens.

And it's just required for me to appoint a
t hree- panel board, and that's what | did. That have no
affiliation wwth Swiss Village or Spring Lake Townshi p.
These gentl enen are outside of the district and they' re here
to deemit necessary or unnecessary to nove forward with the
proj ect.

So I'll do a few introductions and then we can ki nd
of nove quickly.

"Il introduce ny three-panel board. These
gentlenmen fromny left to ny right, we got Rich Vander Kl ok

and he is from Georgetown Township, he's on the board, he's
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been doing a I ot of these over the years.

When | pick these gentlenen it's usually based on
experience, what they know about, nost inportant is Drain
Code, drain law and that's what | go by. So Rich has done
many, many of these and he does a great job.

Then we have Ken Souter. He's from Port Shel don
Townshi p, but he's also nearly 40 years at the road
comm ssion in the engineering departnent. He's retired now
but he has a | ot of experience with drainage and drain | aw.

Then we have -- | always --

UNKNOWN SPEAKER: A d what's his nane.

BOARD MEMBER RON BRI NK:  You're fired.

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH. So then we have --

BOARD MEMBER RON BRI NK:  Ron Brink

WATER RESOURCES COMW JOE BUSH. Ron Brink. | keep
wanting to call himlLarry, but Ron Brink is also from Zeel and
Townshi p, so not near here. And he's been doing a few of
these and he does a great job as well.

He's been on the board at Zeel and Townshi p and
under st ands the procedures.

So there is a process here, everything is court
recorder by Margie. Margie has been doing these for years
and does a great job, so if you ever want to read the
transcript, everything is recorded word for word. And you

can go to M Otawa.org and | ook under \Water Resources
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Conm ssioner. And | have all the Board of Determ nations on
there. And in about four to six weeks after today's neeting
t hey should be posted on there if you ever wanted to read
what happened or why we're here.

And then Larry is from Georgetown, he's our
alternate, from Georgetown. He does a |lot of these but he's
here to sit in in case we needed a spare person.

And then we have Jerry O man, he's with the road
comm ssion currently in the engi neering departnment and he's
been there for quite a few years as well.

And |I'm Joe Bush, the Water Resources Conmi ssioner.
It used to be Drain Comm ssioner, | changed the nane when
got elected in 2012, because it fits nore of what | do.

This is just one small part of nmy job but it's one
of the nost inportant is having a public hearing and | ooking
at what the issues are and whether they see it necessary or
not to nove forward to hel p people out.

| got the whole county, I"'melected, so this is
just one of the townships that | do work in. Again we have
Gordon Gal | agher, he's the township nanager. And ny chi ef
deputy Chad in the back and Sara, who is ny secretary.

And then we have Ryan from Eng. Ryan has been --
he works for probably |I'd say at |east 25 different drain
conm ssioners, and his firmworks for conm ssioners across

the whole state. He's based out of Grand Haven currently but
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their main office is in Lansing.

So people are like, well, Eng, | haven't heard of
them but they've been in the water business for a long tine.
He does a great job for us. He'll be giving a presentation
at some point.

And once | give these three gentlenmen here the
oath, they' Il be running the neeting. They' Il pick a chair
and they' Il be -- you guys will be going to those folks if
you have any questions or concerns. So it won't be nme. So
|"'mnot the one who determ nes the necessity or not. By
state law | got to appoint this panel board.

So we'll nove forward based on their decision.

And if you do have a comment, please give your
name, address and your concerns so the court reporter can
hear it. And then as of now we'll go ahead and nove forward.

Gent | enen, raise your right hand, we'll give you
t he oath.

Do you each solemly swear that you will faithfully
perform and di scharge the duties inposed upon you as required
by | aw as nenbers of the Board of Determ nation appointed by
the Water Resources Conmi ssioner to determ ne the necessity
to |l ocate and establish and construct the proposed Sw ss
Village Sub Drain, located in Spring Lake Township in said
county, gentleman?

BOARD MEMBER RI CH VANDER KLCK: | do.
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agenda is

BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER: | do.

BOARD MEMBER RON BRI NK: | do.

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH: Thank you.
BOARD MEMBER KEN SQUTER: The first thing on our
to el ect a chairperson

Do we have a notion?

BOARD MEMBER RI CH VANDER KLOK: ['Il make a notion

that Ken Souter be the chair.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER: Do we have a second to

that notion?

BOARD MEMBER RON BRI NK: I'"ll second that.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SOQUTER: Moved and seconded. Al

in favor, say aye.

BOARD MEMBER Rl CH VANDER KLOK: Aye.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER: Aye.

BOARD MEMBER RON BRI NK:  Aye.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER: Al so we need to have
a secretary, and I'lIl nmake a notion that Rich, you serve as
secretary.

BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK: |'I| support that.

BOARD CHAI RVAN KEN SOQUTER: Moved and supported
that Rich is secretary.

Al in favor, say aye.
BOARD MEMBER RI CH VANDER KLOK: Aye.
BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Aye.
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BOARD MEMBER RON BRI NK:  Aye.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SCOUTER: And then the third
thing, I'd like to make a notion that, and we don't have that
many people so it's not going to be a problem but I'd Iike
to make a notion that public coment be limted to about

t hree m nut es.

BOARD SECRETARY RI CH VANDER KLCK: ['Ill support
t hat .

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOQUTER: Mbved and seconded.

Al in favor, say aye.

BOARD SECRETARY Rl CH VANDER KLOK: Aye.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SCOUTER:  Aye.

BOARD MEMBER RON BRI NK:  Aye.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Ckay.

| think we're going to get right into the crux of
t he t hing.

Ryan, would you just give us a bl ow by-bl ow account
on what's happeni ng out here?

ENG NEER RYAN McENHI LL:  Yep, | will do that.

I"'m Ryan McEnhill with Eng., I'ma professiona
engi neer in the State of M chigan, and Joe asked us to do
some prelimnary investigation work out there to identify
where sone of the potential issues are at.

And then we al so delineated the district boundary

and cane up with a tentative route and course for where a
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drain may be.

Again the petition was filed by Spring Lake
Township. This is a newdrain, so there is not an existing
county drain in this area so it's done through Chapter 3 and
4 of the Mchigan Drain Code. Joe tal ked about kind of the
role of the board so | won't go into that any further.

But sone of the things that we did just
prelimnarily up and to this point, again being a new drain
there is not any history to go back and find in the Qtawa
County Water Resources office.

But we did review primarily out in the field, we
did site visits to determ ne where the issues were at to cone
up with where a potential drain centerline would be.

And then we provide kind of the independent and
unbi ased assessnent to this Board of Determ nation to assi st
themin making their decision. They obviously haven't been
out and visited the site, so we're going to provide sone
phot os and things of sonme various issues and things |like that
to give this board sone background.

So to come up with a district boundary, the
majority of these issues exist on Al pine Court. So that
purple line -- what we're trying to do is what are the | ands
contributing water to this blue line essentially.

And the --

UNKNOMN SPEAKER: Excuse nme, what is the blue |ine?
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ENG NEER RYAN MCENHI LL: That's the tentative route
and course of where the drain centerline would be.

UNKNOMWN SPEAKER:  Ch, okay.

ENG NEER RYAN MCENHILL: It's just a tentative one
we have at this point.

So the topographical features in this area
obviously being in a dune area were pretty distinct. So it
was a fairly easy district to delineate fromthat standpoint.
But we used G S data and contours fromthe county to assi st
us as well.

And so this purple line is basically the watershed
for this district, cane up with about 14 acres plus or m nus.

So just based on our field review, there is a
depiction for the board nenbers in the packet of kind of how
drai nage is flow ng out there.

There is a large hill, that water all conmes down
Swiss Drive here, takes a turn onto Al pine Court, and then
there is not any curb and gutter or a valley gutter that kind
of keeps the water contained to the roadway. And what's
happening is as it comes down that hill, it's actually
veering off into a resident's driveway and goi ng down their
driveway. So there is a |lot of roadway runoff that's making
its way onto private property.

And there was this second area over on Al pine Court

as well, and there will be photos of this that kind of show
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that. But there is a couple obvious areas that stood out as
| Ssues.

And this -- these are photos of that area. So
where that truck is parked at in the first photo, that's kind
of where it veers off the roadway. |It's a pretty large area
of runoff fromthe roadways that's making its way to this
dri veway approach, running down, and then the property owner
has taken the liberty of putting sonething to try to
all eviate these issues which is probably just a snal
infiltration basin, one or two foot dianeter.

But considering the anobunt of water that's com ng
to this location, that just can't keep up with it. So there
Is water issues to the garage and the residence.

This is the second area. This is on Al pine Court
too. Again, roadway drainage and how the parking area is
graded. This is kind of a standing water |ocation as well
with no infrastructure in place to kind of convey that to a
| ow point or an area where it can infiltrate.

And just tal king about the soil conditions again,
obviously being in a dune area we have a | ot of sandy soils.

The water table is a little bit variable out there
where we woul d probably look to do sone infiltration
practices. The water table is only 18 to 24 inches, this is
fromthe NRCS Soil Survey that gives us this info. W could

get better information by doing tech geotechnical work, but
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that's sonmething we can explore down the |line if the board
finds it necessary.

And then infiltration rates are 20 to 60 inches per
hour which is very, very good and conducive to infiltration.
So there are opportunities there where if we can get the
water directed to a point, such as a grass or soil area,
there is the opportunity there for infiltration to occur.

So just as a sumary, obviously being very
little -- there is sone stormwater infrastructure, but not
in the |ocations where it needs to be to be effective, so not
havi ng that capability to handl e sonme of the runoff is issue
nunber one.

There are things that can be done by adding curb
and gutter or valley gutter to keep the water contained and
be able to convey it to a location where it's not causing
structure danage, it's sonething that's noticeable and coul d
be corrected.

So that's all | have, kind of a brief summary.
It's a very small district, there is just a handful of
probl ens there that could potentially be corrected.

But obviously there is a snall crowd for public
testinmony. But we'll do that next.

And then if this board nmakes a determ nation that
this project is not necessary, then the project would die,

not hi ng woul d happen.
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If they did find the project necessary, we would
start the process of scoping the project and then designing
it.

This particular project, |I'mnot certain that
easenents or any type of permts other than a road conmm ssion
permt would be necessary. So this is the type of project
that would be, | guess, swifter than nbst drain projects.

And then we'd prepare a big plan and nake sone of these
corrections to fix where we got these pondi ng water areas.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER: A question for you.
Did you go back into the -- when this thing was plated and
where that water was supposed to go?

ENG NEER RYAN MCENHI LL: We did not. So there is
-- | can go back quickly.

So just when you're out there and you start to | ook
at, okay, what would we do to try to alleviate sone of these
i ssues. This area right here (indicating) at Al pine Court, I
don't know if you can see that, right down here (indicating),
is an obvious area where if you can get the water directed to
that point and have it infiltrate at that |ocation, that
woul d be sonet hing where we'd be | ooking to do that.

BOARD CHAlI RPERSON KEN SOUTER  Ckay.

Now | also | ooked on -- | nean | don't know this
area that well, but it |looked like there is multifamly
housing here? O is this -- | nean |ike parking areas.
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ENG NEER RYAN McENHI LL: Yes. So | think there is
just a handful of single-famly hones and the majority of it
I s apartnment conpl exes, yep.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Ckay.

From that point, the township?

SPRI NG LAKE TOMANSHI P MANAGER GORDON GALLAGHER
Thank you very nuch

Gordon Gal | agher, Spring Lake Townshi p Manager.
First off, we greatly appreciate your work and Joe Bush's
work in dealing with sone of these problens.

Over the years | think that problens have not been
addressed, and the efforts of everyone to finally | ook and
say let's get sonething in place so that we have a nmechani sm
to address these problens, is greatly appreciated.

The ot her thing about this issue, as you have
noticed fromthe last hearing to this one, this really
i npacts one -- the inpact is to one or tw residents. But
it's as inportant as |arger ones as well because the inpact
is significant. And that's why our board decided that we
shoul d petition because the inpact that one or two homeowners
are having here is very significant fromthe runoff that's
happeni ng.

So we would urge that you do nmake a determ nati on
that this should becone a county drain so that the resources

can be put towards getting a solution put in place.
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Thank you.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOQUTER: So basical |y what
you're saying is all of the area is draining into two
particul ar spots?

SPRI NG LAKE TOMANSHI P MANAGER GORDON GALLAGHER:

That |'maware of. And so I know that the Checks are here,
who are one of those famlies, and they're the ones that have
seen the nost significant -- | believe this is their hone
here (i ndicating).

UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Yes, sir

SPRI NG LAKE TOMANSHI P MANAGER GORDON GALLAGHER
And so what ends up happening is they're the ones that see
the nost significant runoff fromthe roads and area. And
t hey al so happen to be one of the | ower properties.

So it's not their water. That's the problem when
It gets right down to it. It would be different if this was
a situation where they were just dealing with the water that
was just on their property.

But -- and | think that the reason that there
aren't nore people here is because the other folks don't have
a problem They're high and dry. And so they don't
necessary -- wouldn't necessarily see this as a problem

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER: So the township is
in favor of this?

SPRI NG LAKE TOMSH P MANGER GORDON GALLAGHER:  Yes,
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we are.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER: Thank you

Jerry A man fromthe road conm ssi on?

ROAD COW SSI ON JERRY OLMAN:  On Al pine Court there
are a couple of |eaching basins right here where Ryan
suggested that that would be a good spot for infiltration.

But -- and it is a 20-foot w de paved ditch section,
cross-section road that was put in here.

But there is sone areas there is no | onger any kind
of a visible ditch there, and years after this plat was put
in, the bike path canme in, and that nay have taken the place
of what used to be a ditch

So now all of this water from here runs down and
around into this parcel, whether it was intended, people wth
the bi ke path for this water to come down and around to this
basin, that |'m not sure on.

But, yeah, it is an obvious problemin that area.

So with that being an orphan system the road
comm ssion would be in favor of having the Water Resources
Conmmi ssioner take it over to find a solution for it.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER: Thank you, Jerry.

Then we're going to open the, open it for public
coment. And we'll start with the young lady up front.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: No comment.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER:  No conment, okay.
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The ot her two people here.

M5. JANET PETERS: First 1'd like to say that |
don't know --

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER: Cone up to the mc
and gi ve your nane and address.

M5. JANET PETERS: Janet Peters, 18225 Al pine
Court, Spring Lake, M chigan, 49456.

| don't know how this has not been addressed
previously. This happens every tinme there is a torrentia
downpour. There is no way to direct the water to where it's
goi ng.

The small| drain that we have is too small to --

MR. DAVID CHECK: About a four-inch drain.

MS. JANET PETERS: -- to take on all this water.
So our driveway floods, then our backyard floods, and then
the water goes into the two apartnents.

So we've had to re-carpet, sanitize, the whole nine
yards that you have to do when there is a fl ood.

MR. DAVID CHECK: Sanitation isn't cheap

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER:  You' re her husband?

MR. DAVID CHECK: Yes, |I'msorry David Check.

M5. JANET PETERS: And we've gone through this
several tinmes. W' ve had new carpeting, alnost every year
at |l east one a year, and that's --

MR, DAVID CHECK: Twi ce | ast year.
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M5. JANET PETERS: -- five to $10,000 every year
and that's what it's costing us to stay in our hone.

MR. DAVID CHECK: And we also can't get flood
I nsurance because we're not in a floodplain. So | had to
petition FEMA in order to get the flood i nsurance and trust
me, that's not cheap.

Qur honeowner's insurance won't cover it. \Wen
go to ny insurance conpany and ask themfor help, tell them
we're flooded again, well, we can't do anything unless your
drain is backed up.

So last year | lied to themand told themny drain
was backed up, at least we got a little bit of help.

But this happens two or three tinmes a year. And |
think the reason is shortly before we noved there, they put
in a three-car garage on the side.

Can you go forward one picture?

This driveway right here | don't think was there
before we noved in. And the problemis none of the water
goes past ny driveway. None of it.

It comes down Swiss Drive, it conmes down Al pine
Court, and nothing goes by ny driveway, nothing goes down to
here. Everything goes down here and this little tiny drain
that | have here is supposed to catch everything.

| have black nold in ny garage. | nean | haven't

even touched the garage yet. M garage floods every tine.
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BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER.  Ckay.

M5. JANET PETERS: The water basically is al nbst
knee high when we're dealing wth this flood.

MR. DAVID CHECK: |'ve tried to do several things
to alleviate it. 1've cut a ditch over here (indicating) to
make the water go behind this apartnment. But unless you're
out there shoveling the water, it's just not going to go.

|"ve tried in the front here. | cut ditches into
nmy |lawn on both here and on the other side to try to get the
water to drain into ny lawn, and the water just, it cones by
too fast. It just won't go in there.

So unless you're out there pushing the water, you
got to be out by the garage pushing the water, and | got to
be out in the street pushing the water.

| travel for aliving, ny wife is disabled. So,

you know, it --

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOQUTER: Thank you very nuch

MR. DAVI D CHECK: ' m screwed.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER: Thank you very nuch.

M5. JANET PETERS:. Thank you.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER: Ckay. | don't know
that we've got anybody else in the roomfor comrents, which
I S unusual .

So | would call it an end to the public coment,

and take board coment.
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BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  Well, the township is in
favor of it, the road commssion is in favor of it, and
they' ve got a problem

BOARD CHAlI RPERSON KEN SOUTER: They' ve got a

probl em

BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  So | would be in favor of
it.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER: Rich?

BOARD SECRETARY RI CH VANDER KLOK: | really can't
add anything. | would also concur and I'min favor of it.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOQUTER: Then I'mgoing to
call for a notion. | agree with you both, both of you, the

sane thing. W got a problem here and hopefully we can fix
it. So --

BOARD SECRETARY RI CH VANDER KLOK: M. Chairman,
"1l make the notion that the |ocation, establishnment and
construction of the Swiss Valley Sub --

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOQUTER: Swi ss Vil l age.

BOARD SECRETARY RI CH VANDER KLCK: | said valley,
Swiss Village is necessary and conducive to the public
heal t h, conveni ence or wel fare.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOQUTER: Do we have a second?

BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK: | w Il second that.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER: Moved and seconded

that it is necessary for public health, conveni ence and

OBrien & Bails Court Reporting and Video
(800) 878-8750 - M chigan Firm No. 8029

19




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

wel fare

Al in favor, say aye.

BOARD SECRETARY Rl CH VANDER KLOK: Aye.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOQUTER:  Aye.

BOARD MEMBER RON BRI NK:  Aye.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Opposed?

Motion carried.

Hopeful |y we can get something done for you.

MR. DAVID CHECK: | hope so, thank you. | mean
come spring, I'mlooking at torrential rains again so |'Il be
fl ooded agai n.

BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK: | don't knowif it will be
done before spring though.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOUTER: It's a snall
di strict, so maybe sonething can be done.

BOARD MEMBER RON BRI NK:  Maybe.

MR. DAVID CHECK: |If we can just get the water to
go past ny driveway, that would be great.

BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SOQUTER: Ki nd of a secondary
t hought on this whole thing, this is probably, and Jerry
probably understands it too, this is probably back in the era
that the road conm ssion allowed ditches wthin subdivision
areas. And these were all -- the ditches were supposed to be
al so | eaching areas for the water com ng fromthe houses,

comng fromthe street, ditches that were supposed to be in
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t here.

The first thing that happened to those ditches is
they were filled. So the water doesn't have any place to
| each anynore. W had that case a ot of tines in the
subdi vi si ons where they dug a hole for the basenent that fel
and went right into the ditches. And we struggled with it
for years and years and finally went to curb section where
they had to actually put stormsewer intorig it to an of
outlet.

And we had that problemfor years and years. And
this probably dates back to that era. It sounds |like that
must be -- it's a 20-foot w de roadway?

ROAD COW SSI ON JERRY OLMAN:  Yes.

BOARD CHAlI RPERSON KEN SOQUTER: So a 20-foot w de
roadway wth two foot ditches on either side, and |'|
guarantee you can't find any ditches anynore.

MR. DAVID CHECK: There are no ditches.

BOARD CHAI RVAN BI LL CARGO So that's just a side
not e.

| appreciate you conmng in. | appreciate your
problem And hopefully for the township we can get this
t aken care of.

Thank you for your tine.

(BOD concluded at 11:58 a.m)

OBrien & Bails Court Reporting and Video
(800) 878-8750 - M chigan Firm No. 8029

21




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

CERTI FI CATI ON OF COURT REPORTER AND NOTARY PUBLI C

STATE OF M CHI GAN )
) SS
COUNTY OF MUSKEGON )

| certify that this transcript, consisting of 22
pages, is a conplete, true and correct record of the BQOD -

Swiss Village Sub Drain, held on Decenber 5, 2019.

DATE: Dgcember 26, 2019

Moyt

MARJORI E A. COVEY, CSR-2616

141 East M chi gan Avenue, Suite 206
Kal amazoo, M 49007

1. 800. 878. 8750

Notary Public Expires: Cctober 14, 2021, Miskegon
County, Mchigan/Acting in the State of M chi gan.
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           1                 Spring Lake, Michigan



           2                 December 5, 2019 - 11:30 a.m.



           3                                PROCEEDINGS



           4                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Good morning.



           5       Welcome to a Board Of Determination, a public hearing,



           6       because we were petitioned by the Township of Spring Lake for



           7       some improvement over in Swiss Village Drain District.  So



           8       and that's why we're here today.  You guys walked into the



           9       other one at 10 o'clock, so, again, we welcome you to sit and



          10       listen to why we're here.  And it's all part of Drain Code



          11       which is state law.



          12                 We got to have a public hearing to hear testimony



          13       on whether people are having problems or they're not having



          14       problems.



          15                 And it's just required for me to appoint a



          16       three-panel board, and that's what I did.  That have no



          17       affiliation with Swiss Village or Spring Lake Township.



          18       These gentlemen are outside of the district and they're here



          19       to deem it necessary or unnecessary to move forward with the



          20       project.



          21                 So I'll do a few introductions and then we can kind



          22       of move quickly.



          23                 I'll introduce my three-panel board.  These



          24       gentlemen from my left to my right, we got Rich Vander Klok



          25       and he is from Georgetown Township, he's on the board, he's







                                          2

�









           1       been doing a lot of these over the years.



           2                 When I pick these gentlemen it's usually based on



           3       experience, what they know about, most important is Drain



           4       Code, drain law and that's what I go by.  So Rich has done



           5       many, many of these and he does a great job.



           6                 Then we have Ken Souter.  He's from Port Sheldon



           7       Township, but he's also nearly 40 years at the road



           8       commission in the engineering department.  He's retired now



           9       but he has a lot of experience with drainage and drain law.



          10                 Then we have -- I always --



          11                 UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Old what's his name.



          12                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  You're fired.



          13                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  So then we have --



          14                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  Ron Brink.



          15                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Ron Brink.  I keep



          16       wanting to call him Larry, but Ron Brink is also from Zeeland



          17       Township, so not near here.  And he's been doing a few of



          18       these and he does a great job as well.



          19                 He's been on the board at Zeeland Township and



          20       understands the procedures.



          21                 So there is a process here, everything is court



          22       recorder by Margie.  Margie has been doing these for years



          23       and does a great job, so if you ever want to read the



          24       transcript, everything is recorded word for word.  And you



          25       can go to MIOttawa.org and look under Water Resources
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           1       Commissioner.  And I have all the Board of Determinations on



           2       there.  And in about four to six weeks after today's meeting



           3       they should be posted on there if you ever wanted to read



           4       what happened or why we're here.



           5                 And then Larry is from Georgetown, he's our



           6       alternate, from Georgetown.  He does a lot of these but he's



           7       here to sit in in case we needed a spare person.



           8                 And then we have Jerry Olman, he's with the road



           9       commission currently in the engineering department and he's



          10       been there for quite a few years as well.



          11                 And I'm Joe Bush, the Water Resources Commissioner.



          12       It used to be Drain Commissioner, I changed the name when I



          13       got elected in 2012, because it fits more of what I do.



          14                 This is just one small part of my job but it's one



          15       of the most important is having a public hearing and looking



          16       at what the issues are and whether they see it necessary or



          17       not to move forward to help people out.



          18                 I got the whole county, I'm elected, so this is



          19       just one of the townships that I do work in.  Again we have



          20       Gordon Gallagher, he's the township manager.  And my chief



          21       deputy Chad in the back and Sara, who is my secretary.



          22                 And then we have Ryan from Eng.  Ryan has been --



          23       he works for probably I'd say at least 25 different drain



          24       commissioners, and his firm works for commissioners across



          25       the whole state.  He's based out of Grand Haven currently but
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           1       their main office is in Lansing.



           2                 So people are like, well, Eng, I haven't heard of



           3       them, but they've been in the water business for a long time.



           4       He does a great job for us.  He'll be giving a presentation



           5       at some point.



           6                 And once I give these three gentlemen here the



           7       oath, they'll be running the meeting.  They'll pick a chair



           8       and they'll be -- you guys will be going to those folks if



           9       you have any questions or concerns.  So it won't be me.  So



          10       I'm not the one who determines the necessity or not.  By



          11       state law I got to appoint this panel board.



          12                 So we'll move forward based on their decision.



          13                 And if you do have a comment, please give your



          14       name, address and your concerns so the court reporter can



          15       hear it.  And then as of now we'll go ahead and move forward.



          16                 Gentlemen, raise your right hand, we'll give you



          17       the oath.



          18                 Do you each solemnly swear that you will faithfully



          19       perform and discharge the duties imposed upon you as required



          20       by law as members of the Board of Determination appointed by



          21       the Water Resources Commissioner to determine the necessity



          22       to locate and establish and construct the proposed Swiss



          23       Village Sub Drain, located in Spring Lake Township in said



          24       county, gentleman?



          25                 BOARD MEMBER RICH VANDER KLOK:  I do.
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           1                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  I do.



           2                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  I do.



           3                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Thank you.



           4                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  The first thing on our



           5       agenda is to elect a chairperson.



           6                 Do we have a motion?



           7                 BOARD MEMBER RICH VANDER KLOK:  I'll make a motion



           8       that Ken Souter be the chair.



           9                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  Do we have a second to



          10       that motion?



          11                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  I'll second that.



          12                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  Moved and seconded.  All



          13       in favor, say aye.



          14                 BOARD MEMBER RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.



          15                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  Aye.



          16                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  Aye.



          17                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Also we need to have



          18       a secretary, and I'll make a motion that Rich, you serve as



          19       secretary.



          20                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  I'll support that.



          21                 BOARD CHAIRMAN KEN SOUTER:  Moved and supported



          22       that Rich is secretary.



          23                 All in favor, say aye.



          24                 BOARD MEMBER RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.



          25                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Aye.
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           1                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  Aye.



           2                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  And then the third



           3       thing, I'd like to make a motion that, and we don't have that



           4       many people so it's not going to be a problem, but I'd like



           5       to make a motion that public comment be limited to about



           6       three minutes.



           7                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  I'll support



           8       that.



           9                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Moved and seconded.



          10                 All in favor, say aye.



          11                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.



          12                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Aye.



          13                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  Aye.



          14                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Okay.



          15                 I think we're going to get right into the crux of



          16       the thing.



          17                 Ryan, would you just give us a blow-by-blow account



          18       on what's happening out here?



          19                 ENGINEER RYAN McENHILL:  Yep, I will do that.



          20                 I'm Ryan McEnhill with Eng., I'm a professional



          21       engineer in the State of Michigan, and Joe asked us to do



          22       some preliminary investigation work out there to identify



          23       where some of the potential issues are at.



          24                 And then we also delineated the district boundary



          25       and came up with a tentative route and course for where a
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           1       drain may be.



           2                 Again the petition was filed by Spring Lake



           3       Township.  This is a new drain, so there is not an existing



           4       county drain in this area so it's done through Chapter 3 and



           5       4 of the Michigan Drain Code.  Joe talked about kind of the



           6       role of the board so I won't go into that any further.



           7                 But some of the things that we did just



           8       preliminarily up and to this point, again being a new drain



           9       there is not any history to go back and find in the Ottawa



          10       County Water Resources office.



          11                 But we did review primarily out in the field, we



          12       did site visits to determine where the issues were at to come



          13       up with where a potential drain centerline would be.



          14                 And then we provide kind of the independent and



          15       unbiased assessment to this Board of Determination to assist



          16       them in making their decision.  They obviously haven't been



          17       out and visited the site, so we're going to provide some



          18       photos and things of some various issues and things like that



          19       to give this board some background.



          20                 So to come up with a district boundary, the



          21       majority of these issues exist on Alpine Court.  So that



          22       purple line -- what we're trying to do is what are the lands



          23       contributing water to this blue line essentially.



          24                 And the --



          25                 UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Excuse me, what is the blue line?
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           1                 ENGINEER RYAN McENHILL:  That's the tentative route



           2       and course of where the drain centerline would be.



           3                 UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Oh, okay.



           4                 ENGINEER RYAN McENHILL:  It's just a tentative one



           5       we have at this point.



           6                 So the topographical features in this area



           7       obviously being in a dune area were pretty distinct.  So it



           8       was a fairly easy district to delineate from that standpoint.



           9       But we used GIS data and contours from the county to assist



          10       us as well.



          11                 And so this purple line is basically the watershed



          12       for this district, came up with about 14 acres plus or minus.



          13                 So just based on our field review, there is a



          14       depiction for the board members in the packet of kind of how



          15       drainage is flowing out there.



          16                 There is a large hill, that water all comes down



          17       Swiss Drive here, takes a turn onto Alpine Court, and then



          18       there is not any curb and gutter or a valley gutter that kind



          19       of keeps the water contained to the roadway.  And what's



          20       happening is as it comes down that hill, it's actually



          21       veering off into a resident's driveway and going down their



          22       driveway.  So there is a lot of roadway runoff that's making



          23       its way onto private property.



          24                 And there was this second area over on Alpine Court



          25       as well, and there will be photos of this that kind of show
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           1       that.  But there is a couple obvious areas that stood out as



           2       issues.



           3                 And this -- these are photos of that area.  So



           4       where that truck is parked at in the first photo, that's kind



           5       of where it veers off the roadway.  It's a pretty large area



           6       of runoff from the roadways that's making its way to this



           7       driveway approach, running down, and then the property owner



           8       has taken the liberty of putting something to try to



           9       alleviate these issues which is probably just a small



          10       infiltration basin, one or two foot diameter.



          11                 But considering the amount of water that's coming



          12       to this location, that just can't keep up with it.  So there



          13       is water issues to the garage and the residence.



          14                 This is the second area.  This is on Alpine Court



          15       too.  Again, roadway drainage and how the parking area is



          16       graded.  This is kind of a standing water location as well



          17       with no infrastructure in place to kind of convey that to a



          18       low point or an area where it can infiltrate.



          19                 And just talking about the soil conditions again,



          20       obviously being in a dune area we have a lot of sandy soils.



          21                 The water table is a little bit variable out there



          22       where we would probably look to do some infiltration



          23       practices.  The water table is only 18 to 24 inches, this is



          24       from the NRCS Soil Survey that gives us this info.  We could



          25       get better information by doing tech geotechnical work, but
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           1       that's something we can explore down the line if the board



           2       finds it necessary.



           3                 And then infiltration rates are 20 to 60 inches per



           4       hour which is very, very good and conducive to infiltration.



           5       So there are opportunities there where if we can get the



           6       water directed to a point, such as a grass or soil area,



           7       there is the opportunity there for infiltration to occur.



           8                 So just as a summary, obviously being very



           9       little -- there is some storm water infrastructure, but not



          10       in the locations where it needs to be to be effective, so not



          11       having that capability to handle some of the runoff is issue



          12       number one.



          13                 There are things that can be done by adding curb



          14       and gutter or valley gutter to keep the water contained and



          15       be able to convey it to a location where it's not causing



          16       structure damage, it's something that's noticeable and could



          17       be corrected.



          18                 So that's all I have, kind of a brief summary.



          19       It's a very small district, there is just a handful of



          20       problems there that could potentially be corrected.



          21                 But obviously there is a small crowd for public



          22       testimony.  But we'll do that next.



          23                 And then if this board makes a determination that



          24       this project is not necessary, then the project would die,



          25       nothing would happen.
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           1                 If they did find the project necessary, we would



           2       start the process of scoping the project and then designing



           3       it.



           4                 This particular project, I'm not certain that



           5       easements or any type of permits other than a road commission



           6       permit would be necessary.  So this is the type of project



           7       that would be, I guess, swifter than most drain projects.



           8       And then we'd prepare a big plan and make some of these



           9       corrections to fix where we got these ponding water areas.



          10                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  A question for you.



          11       Did you go back into the -- when this thing was plated and



          12       where that water was supposed to go?



          13                 ENGINEER RYAN McENHILL:  We did not.  So there is



          14       -- I can go back quickly.



          15                 So just when you're out there and you start to look



          16       at, okay, what would we do to try to alleviate some of these



          17       issues.  This area right here (indicating) at Alpine Court, I



          18       don't know if you can see that, right down here (indicating),



          19       is an obvious area where if you can get the water directed to



          20       that point and have it infiltrate at that location, that



          21       would be something where we'd be looking to do that.



          22                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Okay.



          23                 Now I also looked on -- I mean I don't know this



          24       area that well, but it looked like there is multifamily



          25       housing here?  Or is this -- I mean like parking areas.
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           1                 ENGINEER RYAN McENHILL:  Yes.  So I think there is



           2       just a handful of single-family homes and the majority of it



           3       is apartment complexes, yep.



           4                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Okay.



           5                 From that point, the township?



           6                 SPRING LAKE TOWNSHIP MANAGER GORDON GALLAGHER:



           7       Thank you very much.



           8                 Gordon Gallagher, Spring Lake Township Manager.



           9       First off, we greatly appreciate your work and Joe Bush's



          10       work in dealing with some of these problems.



          11                 Over the years I think that problems have not been



          12       addressed, and the efforts of everyone to finally look and



          13       say let's get something in place so that we have a mechanism



          14       to address these problems, is greatly appreciated.



          15                 The other thing about this issue, as you have



          16       noticed from the last hearing to this one, this really



          17       impacts one -- the impact is to one or two residents.  But



          18       it's as important as larger ones as well because the impact



          19       is significant.  And that's why our board decided that we



          20       should petition because the impact that one or two homeowners



          21       are having here is very significant from the runoff that's



          22       happening.



          23                 So we would urge that you do make a determination



          24       that this should become a county drain so that the resources



          25       can be put towards getting a solution put in place.







                                         13

�









           1                 Thank you.



           2                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  So basically what



           3       you're saying is all of the area is draining into two



           4       particular spots?



           5                 SPRING LAKE TOWNSHIP MANAGER GORDON GALLAGHER:



           6       That I'm aware of.  And so I know that the Checks are here,



           7       who are one of those families, and they're the ones that have



           8       seen the most significant -- I believe this is their home



           9       here (indicating).



          10                 UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Yes, sir.



          11                 SPRING LAKE TOWNSHIP MANAGER GORDON GALLAGHER:



          12       And so what ends up happening is they're the ones that see



          13       the most significant runoff from the roads and area.  And



          14       they also happen to be one of the lower properties.



          15                 So it's not their water.  That's the problem, when



          16       it gets right down to it.  It would be different if this was



          17       a situation where they were just dealing with the water that



          18       was just on their property.



          19                 But -- and I think that the reason that there



          20       aren't more people here is because the other folks don't have



          21       a problem.  They're high and dry.  And so they don't



          22       necessary -- wouldn't necessarily see this as a problem.



          23                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  So the township is



          24       in favor of this?



          25                 SPRING LAKE TOWNSHIP MANGER GORDON GALLAGHER:  Yes,
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           1       we are.



           2                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Thank you.



           3                 Jerry Olman from the road commission?



           4                 ROAD COMMISSION JERRY OLMAN:  On Alpine Court there



           5       are a couple of leaching basins right here where Ryan



           6       suggested that that would be a good spot for infiltration.



           7       But -- and it is a 20-foot wide paved ditch section,



           8       cross-section road that was put in here.



           9                 But there is some areas there is no longer any kind



          10       of a visible ditch there, and years after this plat was put



          11       in, the bike path came in, and that may have taken the place



          12       of what used to be a ditch.



          13                 So now all of this water from here runs down and



          14       around into this parcel, whether it was intended, people with



          15       the bike path for this water to come down and around to this



          16       basin, that I'm not sure on.



          17                 But, yeah, it is an obvious problem in that area.



          18                 So with that being an orphan system, the road



          19       commission would be in favor of having the Water Resources



          20       Commissioner take it over to find a solution for it.



          21                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Thank you, Jerry.



          22                 Then we're going to open the, open it for public



          23       comment.  And we'll start with the young lady up front.



          24                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No comment.



          25                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  No comment, okay.
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           1                 The other two people here.



           2                 MS. JANET PETERS:  First I'd like to say that I



           3       don't know --



           4                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Come up to the mic



           5       and give your name and address.



           6                 MS. JANET PETERS:  Janet Peters, 18225 Alpine



           7       Court, Spring Lake, Michigan, 49456.



           8                 I don't know how this has not been addressed



           9       previously.  This happens every time there is a torrential



          10       downpour.  There is no way to direct the water to where it's



          11       going.



          12                 The small drain that we have is too small to --



          13                 MR. DAVID CHECK:  About a four-inch drain.



          14                 MS. JANET PETERS:  -- to take on all this water.



          15       So our driveway floods, then our backyard floods, and then



          16       the water goes into the two apartments.



          17                 So we've had to re-carpet, sanitize, the whole nine



          18       yards that you have to do when there is a flood.



          19                 MR. DAVID CHECK:  Sanitation isn't cheap.



          20                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  You're her husband?



          21                 MR. DAVID CHECK:  Yes, I'm sorry David Check.



          22                 MS. JANET PETERS:  And we've gone through this



          23       several times.  We've had new carpeting, almost every year,



          24       at least one a year, and that's --



          25                 MR. DAVID CHECK:  Twice last year.
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           1                 MS. JANET PETERS:  -- five to $10,000 every year,



           2       and that's what it's costing us to stay in our home.



           3                 MR. DAVID CHECK:  And we also can't get flood



           4       insurance because we're not in a floodplain.  So I had to



           5       petition FEMA in order to get the flood insurance and trust



           6       me, that's not cheap.



           7                 Our homeowner's insurance won't cover it.  When I



           8       go to my insurance company and ask them for help, tell them,



           9       we're flooded again, well, we can't do anything unless your



          10       drain is backed up.



          11                 So last year I lied to them and told them my drain



          12       was backed up, at least we got a little bit of help.



          13                 But this happens two or three times a year.  And I



          14       think the reason is shortly before we moved there, they put



          15       in a three-car garage on the side.



          16                 Can you go forward one picture?



          17                 This driveway right here I don't think was there



          18       before we moved in.  And the problem is none of the water



          19       goes past my driveway.  None of it.



          20                 It comes down Swiss Drive, it comes down Alpine



          21       Court, and nothing goes by my driveway, nothing goes down to



          22       here.  Everything goes down here and this little tiny drain



          23       that I have here is supposed to catch everything.



          24                 I have black mold in my garage.  I mean I haven't



          25       even touched the garage yet.  My garage floods every time.
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           1                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Okay.



           2                 MS. JANET PETERS:  The water basically is almost



           3       knee high when we're dealing with this flood.



           4                 MR. DAVID CHECK:  I've tried to do several things



           5       to alleviate it.  I've cut a ditch over here (indicating) to



           6       make the water go behind this apartment.  But unless you're



           7       out there shoveling the water, it's just not going to go.



           8                 I've tried in the front here.  I cut ditches into



           9       my lawn on both here and on the other side to try to get the



          10       water to drain into my lawn, and the water just, it comes by



          11       too fast.  It just won't go in there.



          12                 So unless you're out there pushing the water, you



          13       got to be out by the garage pushing the water, and I got to



          14       be out in the street pushing the water.



          15                 I travel for a living, my wife is disabled.  So,



          16       you know, it --



          17                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Thank you very much.



          18                 MR. DAVID CHECK:  I'm screwed.



          19                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Thank you very much.



          20                 MS. JANET PETERS:  Thank you.



          21                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Okay.  I don't know



          22       that we've got anybody else in the room for comments, which



          23       is unusual.



          24                 So I would call it an end to the public comment,



          25       and take board comment.
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           1                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  Well, the township is in



           2       favor of it, the road commission is in favor of it, and



           3       they've got a problem.



           4                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  They've got a



           5       problem.



           6                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  So I would be in favor of



           7       it.



           8                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Rich?



           9                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  I really can't



          10       add anything.  I would also concur and I'm in favor of it.



          11                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Then I'm going to



          12       call for a motion.  I agree with you both, both of you, the



          13       same thing.  We got a problem here and hopefully we can fix



          14       it.  So --



          15                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  Mr. Chairman,



          16       I'll make the motion that the location, establishment and



          17       construction of the Swiss Valley Sub --



          18                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Swiss Village.



          19                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  I said valley,



          20       Swiss Village is necessary and conducive to the public



          21       health, convenience or welfare.



          22                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Do we have a second?



          23                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  I will second that.



          24                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Moved and seconded



          25       that it is necessary for public health, convenience and
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           1       welfare.



           2                 All in favor, say aye.



           3                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.



           4                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Aye.



           5                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  Aye.



           6                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Opposed?



           7                 Motion carried.



           8                 Hopefully we can get something done for you.



           9                 MR. DAVID CHECK:  I hope so, thank you.  I mean



          10       come spring, I'm looking at torrential rains again so I'll be



          11       flooded again.



          12                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  I don't know if it will be



          13       done before spring though.



          14                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  It's a small



          15       district, so maybe something can be done.



          16                 BOARD MEMBER RON BRINK:  Maybe.



          17                 MR. DAVID CHECK:  If we can just get the water to



          18       go past my driveway, that would be great.



          19                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  Kind of a secondary



          20       thought on this whole thing, this is probably, and Jerry



          21       probably understands it too, this is probably back in the era



          22       that the road commission allowed ditches within subdivision



          23       areas.  And these were all -- the ditches were supposed to be



          24       also leaching areas for the water coming from the houses,



          25       coming from the street, ditches that were supposed to be in
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           1       there.



           2                 The first thing that happened to those ditches is



           3       they were filled.  So the water doesn't have any place to



           4       leach anymore.  We had that case a lot of times in the



           5       subdivisions where they dug a hole for the basement that fell



           6       and went right into the ditches.  And we struggled with it



           7       for years and years and finally went to curb section where



           8       they had to actually put storm sewer in to rig it to an of



           9       outlet.



          10                 And we had that problem for years and years.  And



          11       this probably dates back to that era.  It sounds like that



          12       must be -- it's a 20-foot wide roadway?



          13                 ROAD COMMISSION JERRY OLMAN:  Yes.



          14                 BOARD CHAIRPERSON KEN SOUTER:  So a 20-foot wide



          15       roadway with two foot ditches on either side, and I'll



          16       guarantee you can't find any ditches anymore.



          17                 MR. DAVID CHECK:  There are no ditches.



          18                 BOARD CHAIRMAN BILL CARGO:  So that's just a side



          19       note.



          20                 I appreciate you coming in.  I appreciate your



          21       problem.  And hopefully for the township we can get this



          22       taken care of.



          23                 Thank you for your time.



          24                    (BOD concluded at 11:58 a.m.)



          25
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BOARD OF DETERM NATI ON

Proceedi ngs commenced at 11:30 a.m, on Thursday,
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Page 2 Page 4
1 Spring Lake, M chigan 1 Comissioner. And | have all the Board of Determinations on
2 Decenber 5, 2019 - 11:30 a.m 2 there. Andin about four to six weeks after today's neeting
3 NGS 3 they should be posted on there if you ever wanted to read
4 WATER RESOURCES OO JCE BUSH  Good mor ni ng. 4 vhat happened or why we're here.
5 \élcone to a Board O Determination, a public hearing, 5 And then Larry is fromGeorgetown, he's our
6 because we were petitioned by the Township of Spring Lake for 6 alternate, fromGeorgetown. He does alot of these but he's
7 sone inprovement over in Sniss Village Drain District. So 7 heretosit inin case we needed a spare person.
8 and that's why we're here today. You guys wal ked into the 8 And then we have Jerry Gman, he's with the road
9 other one at 10 o'clock, so, again, we welcone you to sit and 9 comission currently in the engineering department and he's
10 listentowhy ve're here. Andit's all part of Drain Code 10 been there for quite a fewyears as well.
11 whichis state law 11 And ' mJoe Bush, the Mter Resources Comm Ssioner.
12 V¢ got to have a public hearing to hear testinony 12 It used to be Drain Commissioner, | changed the nane when |
13 on vhether people are having probl ens or they're not having 13 got elected in 2012, because it fits nore of what | do.
14 problens. 14 This is just one small part of ny job but it's one
15 And it's just required for me to appoint a 15 of the most inportant is having a public hearing and I ooki ng
16 three-panel board, and that's what | did. That have no 16 at what the issues are and whether they see it necessary or
17 affiliation with Swiss Village or Spring Lake Township. 17 not to move forward to help people out.
18  These gentlenen are outside of the district and they're here 18 | got the whol e county, |'melected, so thisis
19 to deemit necessary or unnecessary to move forward with the 19 just one of the townships that | do work in. Again we have
20 project. 20 Gordon Gal | agher, he's the township manager. And ny chief
21 So 1"l do a fewintroductions and then we can kind 21 deputy Chad in the back and Sara, who is ny secretary.
22 of nove quickly. 22 And then we have Ryan fromEng. Ryan has been --
23 ["Il introduce ny three-panel board. These 23 he works for probably I'd say at least 25 different drain
24 gentlenen fromny left to ny right, we got Rch Vander K ok 24 commissioners, and his firmworks for commissioners across
25 and he is fromGeorgetown Township, he's on the board, he's 25 the whole state. He's based out of Gand Haven currently but
Page 3 Page 5
1 been doing a lot of these over the years. 1 their main officeisin Lansing.
2 Wen | pick these gentlemen it's usually based on 2 S0 peopl e are like, well, Eng, | haven't heard of
3 experience, what they know about, most inportant is Drain 3 them but they've been in the water business for a long tine.
4  (ode, drainlawand that's what | go by. So Rch has done 4 Heodoes agreat job for us. He'll be giving a presentation
5 many, nany of these and he does a great job. 5 at sone point.
6 Then we have Ken Souter. He's fromPort Shel don 6 And once | give these three gentlenen here the
7 Township, but he's also nearly 40 years at the road 7 oath, they'll be running the neeting. They'll pick a chair
8 comission in the engineering department. He's retired now 8 and they'Il be -- you guys will be going to those folks if
9 but he has a lot of experience with drainage and drain |aw 9 you have any questions or concerns. Soit won't be ne. So
10 Then ve have -- | al ways -- 10 I"mnot the one who determines the necessity or not. By
1 UNKNOMW SPEAKER - O d what's his nane. 11 state law! got to appoint this panel board.
12 BOARD MEMBER RN BRINK  You're fired. 12 So we' |1 nove forward based on their decision.
13 WATER RESOLRCES OO JCE BUSH  So then we have -- 13 And if you do have a comment, please give your
14 BOARD MEMBER RN BRINK  Ron Bri nk. 14 nane, address and your concerns so the court reporter can
15 VATER RESOURCES OOW JCE BUSH  Ron Brink. | keep 15 hear it. And then as of nowwe'll go ahead and move forwvard.
16 wanting to call himLarry, but Ron Brink i s also fromZeel and 16 Gent| emen, raise your right hand, we'll give you
17 Township, so not near here. And he's been doing a few of 17 the oath.
18 these and he does a great job as well. 18 Do you each sol emnly swear that you will faithfully
19 He's been on the board at Zeel and Township and 19 performand discharge the duties inposed upon you as required
20 understands the procedures. 20 by lawas nenbers of the Board of Determnation appointed by
21 So there is a process here, everything is court 21 the Witer Resources Commissioner to determne the necessity
22 recorder by Mrgie. Mrgie has been doing these for years 22 tolocate and establish and construct the proposed S ss
23 and does a great job, soif you ever want to read the 23 Mllage Sub Drain, located in Spring Lake Township in said
24 transcript, everything is recorded word for word. And you 24 county, gent|enman?
25 cangoto MQtawa org and | ook under Viéter Resources 25 BOARD MEMBER R CH VANDER KLCK: | do.
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Page 6 Page 8
1 BOARD MEVBER KEN SIUTER | do. 1 drain nay be.
2 BOARD MEMBER RN BRINK | do. 2 Again the petition wes filed by Spring Lake
3 VWATER RESOURCES COMM JCE BUSH  Thank you. 3 Township. Thisis anewdrain, sothereis not an existing
4 BOARD MEMBER KEN SQUTER  The first thing on our 4 county draininthis area soit's done through Chapter 3 and
5 agenda is to elect a chairperson. 5 4 of the Mchigan Drain Code. Joe tal ked about kind of the
6 Do we have a notion? 6 role of the board so | won't go into that any further.
7 BOARD MEMBER R CH VANDER KLCK: Il nake a noti on 7 But sone of the things that we did just
8 that Ken Souter be the chair. 8 prelimnarily up and to this point, again being a newdrain
9 BOARD MEMBER KEN SQUTER Do wie have a second to 9 thereis not any history to go back and find in the Gtana
10 that motion? 10 County Véter Resources office.
1 BOARD MEMBER RN BRINK  I' 11 second that. 1 But we did reviewprinarily out inthe field, we
12 BOARD MEMBER KEN SQUTER  Moved and seconded. Al 12 didsite visits to deternine where the issues were at to come
13 infavor, say aye. 13 up vith where a potential drain centerline would be.
14 BOARD MEVBER R CH VANDER KLCK:  Aye. 14 And then we provide kind of the independent and
15 BOARD MEMBER KEN SQUTER  Aye. 15  unbi ased assessnent to this Board of Determnation to assist
16 BOARD MEVBER RN BRINK  Aye. 16 themin making their decision. They obviously haven't been
17 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SQUTER - Al'so we need to have 17 out and visited the site, so we're going to provide sone
18 asecretary, and I'Il nake a motion that Rich, you serve as 18 photos and things of some various issues and things |ike that
19 secretary. 19 togive this board sone background.
20 BOARD MEMBER RINBRINK "I support that. 20 So to come up with a district boundary, the
21 BOARD CHAI RVAN KEN SQUTER  Mbved and support ed 21 myjority of these issues exist on Apine Gourt. So that
22 that Rchis secretary. 22 purple line -- what we're trying to dois what are the lands
23 Al in favor, say aye. 23 contributing water to this blue Iine essentially.
24 BOARD MEMBER R CH VANDER KLCK  Aye. 24 And the --
25 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SQUTER - Aye. 25 UNKNOMN SPEAKER  Excuse ne, what is the blue |ine?
Page 7 Page 9
1 BOARD MEMBER RN BRINK  Aye. 1 ENG NEER RYAN MENHLL:  That's the tentative route
2 BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER  And then the third 2 and course of where the drain centerline would be.
3 thing, I'd like to make a notion that, and we don't have that 3 UNKNOM SPEAKER Ch, okay.
4 many people so it's not going to be a problem but 1'd like 4 ENG NEER RYAN MENH LL:  It's just a tentative one
5 to nake a motion that public comment be limted to about 5 e have at this point.
6 three ninutes. 6 So the topographical features inthis area
7 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLXK 1'I1 support 7 obviously being in a dune area were pretty distinct. Soit
8 that. 8 was afairly easy district to delineate fromthat standpoint.
9 BOARD (HA RPERSCN KEN SQUTER - Moved and seconded. 9 But we used @S data and contours fromthe county to assist
10 Al infavor, say aye. 10 us as well.
1 BOARD SECRETARY R (H VANDER KLCXK:  Aye. 1 And so this purple line is basically the watershed
12 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SOUTER -~ Aye. 12 for this district, cane up with about 14 acres plus or mnus.
13 BOARD MEMBER RN BRINK Aye. 13 So just based on our field review thereis a
14 BOARD CHA RPERSON KEN SQUTER - (kay. 14 depiction for the board menbers in the packet of kind of how
15 | think we're going to get right into the crux of 15 drainage is flowng out there.
16  the thing. 16 There is alarge hill, that water all cones down
17 Ryan, woul d you just give us a bl ow by-bl ow account 17 Swiss Drive here, takes a turn onto A pine Gourt, and then
18 on what's happening out here? 18 there is not any curb and gutter or a valley gutter that kind
19 ENG NEER RYAN MENH LL:  Yep, | will do that. 19 of keeps the water contained to the roadway. And what's
20 ["'mRyan MEnhill with Eng., |I'ma professional 20 happening is as it comes down that hill, it's actually
21 engineer inthe Sate of Mchigan, and Joe asked us to do 21 veering off into a resident's driveway and going down their
22 some prelimnary investigation work out there to identify 22 drivenay. Sothereis alot of roadway runoff that's making
23 where sone of the potential issues are at. 23 its way onto private property.
24 And then we al so delineated the district boundary 24 And there was this second area over on A pine Court
25 and cane up with a tentative route and course for where a 25 as well, and there will be photos of this that kind of show
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Page 12

1 that. But there is a couple obvious areas that stood out as 1 If they did find the project necessary, we woul d

2 issues. 2 start the process of scoping the project and then designing

3 And this -- these are photos of that area. So 3 it.

4 vhere that truck is parked at in the first photo, that's kind 4 This particular project, |'mnot certain that

5 of where it veers off the roadway. It's a pretty large area 5 easements or any type of permits other than a road comm ssion

6 of runoff fromthe roadways that's meking its way to this 6 pernit would be necessary. Sothis is the type of project

7 driveway approach, running down, and then the property owner 7 that would be, | guess, swifter than most drain projects

8 has taken the liberty of putting something totry to 8 And then we'd prepare a hig plan and nake some of these

9 alleviate these issues which is probably just a small 9 corrections to fix where we got these ponding water areas

10 infiltration basin, one or two foot dianeter. 10 BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER A question for you.

1 But consi dering the anount of water that's coming 11 Dd you go back into the -- when this thing was plated and

12 tothis location, that just can't keep up withit. So there 12 where that water was supposed to go?

13 is water issues to the garage and the residence. 13 ENG NEER RYAN MENHLL: W did not. Sothereis

14 This is the second area. This is on Al pine Qourt 14 -- | can go back quickly

15 too. Again, roadway drainage and howthe parking areais 15 So just when you're out there and you start to Iook

16 graded. Thisis kind of a standing water location as well 16 at, okay, what would we do to try to alleviate some of these

17 with no infrastructure in place to kind of convey that to a 17 issues. This area right here (indicating) at A pine Gourt,

18 lowpoint or an area where it caninfiltrate. 18 don't knowif you can see that, right down here (indicating),

19 And just talking about the soil conditions again, 19 is an obvious area where if you can get the water directed to

20 obviously being in a dune area we have a ot of sandy soils. 20 that point and have it infiltrate at that location, that

21 The water table is alittle bit variable out there 21 woul d be sonething where we'd be I ooking to do that

22 vhere we woul d probably look to do some infiltration 22 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SIUTER — (kay.

23 practices. The water table is only 18 to 24 inches, thisis 23 Now | also looked on -- | nean | don't know this

24 fromthe NRCS Soil Survey that gives us this info. W& could 24 area that well, but it looked like there is miltifamly

25 get better information by doing tech geotechnical work, but 25 housing here? O is this-- | nean like parking areas
Page 11 Page 13

1 that's sonething we can explore down the line if the board 1 ENG NEER RYAN MENH LL:  Yes. So | think thereis

2 finds it necessary. 2 just a handful of single-famly homes and the ngjority of it

3 And then infiltration rates are 20 to 60 inches per 3 is apartment conplexes, yep

4 hour which is very, very good and conducive to infiltration. 4 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SQUTER - (kay.

5 Sothere are opportunities there where if we can get the 5 Fromthat point, the township?

6 water directed to a point, such as a grass or soil area, 6 SPRING LAKE TOMEH P MANAGER GORDON GALLAGHR

7 thereis the opportunity there for infiltration to occur. 7 Thank you very much

8 So just as a summary, obviously being very 8 Gordon Gal l agher, Spring Lake Township Manager

9 little-- there is some stormwater infrastructure, but not 9 First off, we greatly appreciate your work and Joe Bush's

10 inthe locations where it needs to be to be effective, so not 10 work in dealing with sone of these probl ens

11 having that capability to handl e sone of the runoff is issue 1 Over the years | think that problens have not been

12 nunber one. 12 addressed, and the efforts of everyone to finally |ook and

13 There are things that can be done by adding curb 13 say let's get sonething in place so that we have a nmechani sm

14 and gutter or valley gutter to keep the water contained and 14 to address these problens, is greatly appreciated

15 be able to convey it to alocation where it's not causing 15 The other thing about this issue, as you have

16 structure damage, it's something that's noticeable and coul d 16 noticed fromthe last hearing to this one, this really

17 be corrected. 17 inpacts one -- the inpact is to one or two residents. But

18 So that's all | have, kind of a brief summary. 18 it's as inportant as larger ones as well because the inpact

19 It's avery small district, there is just a handful of 19 issignificant. And that's why our board decided that e

20 problens there that could potentially be corrected. 20 shoul d petition because the inpact that one or two honeowners

21 But obviously there is a small crowd for public 21 are having here is very significant fromthe runoff that's

22 testimony. But we'll do that next. 22 happening

23 And then if this board makes a determnation that 23 So ve woul d urge that you do nake a deternmination

24 this project is not necessary, then the project would die, 24 that this shoul d become a county drain so that the resources

25 nothing woul d happen. 25 can be put towards getting a solution put in place
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Page 16

1 Thank you. 1 The other two peopl e here
2 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SCUTER - S0 basi cal |y what 2 M5, JANET PETERS First 1'd like to say that |
3 you'resayingisal of the areais draining into tw 3 don't know --
4 particular spots? 4 BOARD CHAl RPERSCN KEN SQUTER  Core up to the nmic
5 SPRING LAKE TOMEH P MANAGER GORDON GALLAGHR 5 and give your name and address.
6 That |'mavare of. And so | knowthat the Checks are here, 6 MB. JANET PETERS. Janet Peters, 18225 Al pine
7 who are one of those famlies, and they're the ones that have 7 Qourt, Spring Lake, Mchigan, 49456
8 seen the nost significant -- | believe thisis their hone 8 | don't know how this has not been addressed
9 here (indicating). 9 previously. This happens every tine there is a torrentia
10 UNKNOMW SPEAKER  Yes, siT. 10  downpour. There is no way to direct the water to where it's
1 SPRING LAKE TOANSH P NANAGER GORDON GALLAGHER 11 going.
12 And so what ends up happening is they're the ones that see 12 The snal | drain that we have is too snall to --
13 the most significant runoff fromthe roads and area. And 13 M DAVID CGHECK:  About a four-inch drain
14 they al so happen to be one of the | over properties. 14 MB. JANET PETERS. -- to take on all this water.
15 Soit's not their water. That's the probl em when 15 So our driveway floods, then our backyard floods, and then
16 it getsright downtoit. It would be different if this was 16 the water goes into the two apartments
17 asituation where they were just dealing wth the water that 17 So we've had to re-carpet, sanitize, the whole nine
18 was just on their property. 18 yards that you have to do when there is a flood
19 But -- and | think that the reason that there 19 M DMD CGEX Sanitationisn't cheap.
20 aren't more peopl e here is because the other folks don't have 20 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SCUTER  You' re her husband?
21 aproblem They're high and dry. And so they don't 21 M DMDCGEX Yes, I'msorry David Check
22 necessary -- woul dn't necessarily see this as a probl em 22 M5, JANET PETERS.  And we' ve gone through this
23 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SUTER o the township is 23 several times. \¥'ve had new carpeting, alnost every year,
24 in favor of this? 24 at least one a year, and that's --
25 SPRING LAKE TOMEH P MANGER GCRDON GALLAGHER e, 25 M DAMVIDCGHEX Twice last year.

Page 15 Page 17
1 weare 1 M5, JANET PETERS -- five to $10,000 every year,
2 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SQUTER  Thank you. 2 and that's what it's costing us to stay in our hone.
3 Jerry Qnan fromthe road comission? 3 M DMD CGHEX And we also can't get flood
4 ROAD COMM SSI QN JERRY MW On Alpine Qourt there 4 insurance because we're not in afloodplain. So | had to
5 are a couple of |eaching basins right here where Ryan 5 petition FEMAin order to get the flood insurance and trust
6 suggested that that would be a good spot for infiltration. 6 e, that's not cheap
7 But --anditis a20-foot wide paved ditch section, 7 Qur honeowner's insurance won't cover it. \Men
8 cross-section road that was put in here. 8 go to ny insurance conpany and ask themfor help, tell them
9 But there is sone areas there is no longer any kind 9 we're flooded again, well, we can't do anything unless your
10 of avisible ditchthere, and years after this plat was put 10 drainis backed up
11 in, the bike path came in, and that may have taken the place 1 So last year | lied to themand told themny drain
12 of what used to be a ditch. 12 was backed up, at least we got alittle bit of help
13 So now all of this water fromhere runs down and 13 But this happens two or three times a year. And
14 around into this parcel, whether it was intended, people with 14 think the reason is shortly before we noved there, they put
15 the bike path for this water to come down and around to this 15 inathree-car garage on the side
16 basin, that I'mnot sure on. 16 Gan you go forward one picture?
17 But, yeah, it is an obvious problemin that area. 17 This driveway right here | don't think was there
18 So with that being an orphan system the road 18 hefore we moved in.  And the problemis none of the water
19 commissi on woul d be in favor of having the Wter Resources 19 goes past ny driveway. None of it.
20 Commissioner take it over to find a solution for it. 20 It cones down Swiss Drive, it comes down Al pine
21 BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER  Thank you, Jerry. 21 CQourt, and nothing goes by ny driveway, nothing goes down to
22 Then we're going to open the, openit for public 22 here. Everything goes down here and this little tiny drain
23 comment. And we'll start with the young lady up front. 23 that | have here i s supposed to catch everything
24 UN DENTI F ED SPEAKER  No conment . 24 | have black mold in ny garage. | nean | haven't
25 BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER o comment,  okay. 25 even touched the garage yet. M garage floods every tine.
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1 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SOUTER - (kay. 1 wvelfare

2 M5, JANET PETERS. The water basically is al nost 2 Al in favor, say aye.

3 knee high when we're dealing wth this flood. 3 BOARD SECRETARY R (H VANDER KLCXK:  Aye.

4 M DMDCGEX |'vetried to do several things 4 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SCUTER - Aye.

5 toalleviateit. |'vecut aditch over here (indicating) to 5 BOARD MEVBER RIN BRINK  Aye.

6 nake the water go behind this apartment. But unless you're 6 BOARD CHAl RPERSCN KEN SQUTER - (pposed?

7 out there shoveling the water, it's just not going to go. 7 Mtion carri ed.

8 ['ve tried in the front here. | cut ditches into 8 Hopeful |y we can get sonething done for you.

9 ny lawn on both here and on the other side to try to get the 9 M DMD CGHEX | hope so, thank you. | nean

10 water todraininto ny lawn, and the water just, it cones by 10 come spring, |'mlooking at torrential rains againso |I'll be

11 too fast. It just won't goin there. 11 flooded agai n.

12 So unl ess you're out there pushing the water, you 12 BOARD MEMBER RINBRINK | don't knowif it wll be

13 got to be out by the garage pushing the water, and | got to 13 done before spring though.

14 be out in the street pushing the water. 14 BOARD CHA RPERSON KEN SQUTER  It''s a smal |

15 | travel for aliving, ny wifeis disabled So, 15 district, so maybe sonething can be done.

16 you know it -- 16 BOARD MEVBER RON BRINK  Maybe.

17 BOARD CHAl RPERSCN KEN SQUTER  Thank you very much. 17 M DAVID GEXK If we can just get the water to

18 M DAMD GHEX |'mscreved. 18 go past ny driveway, that would be great.

19 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SCUTER  Thank you very much. 19 BOARD CHA RPERSON KEN SCUTER - Kind of a secondary

20 MB. JANET PETERS  Thank you. 20 thought on this whole thing, this is probably, and Jerry

21 BOARD CHA RPERSON KEN SCUTER (kay. | don't know 21 probably understands it too, this is probably back in the era

22 that we've got anybody else in the roomfor coments, which 22 that the road commission al l oved ditches within subdivision

23 is unusual . 23 areas. And these vere all -- the ditches were supposed to be

24 So | would call it anendto the public comment, 24 also leaching areas for the water comng fromthe houses,

25 and take board comment. 25 coming fromthe street, ditches that were supposed to be in
Page 19 Page 21

1 BOARD MEMBER RIN BRINK V@I, the township is in 1 there.

2 favor of it, the road coomssionis in favor of it, and 2 The first thing that happened to those ditches is

3 they've got a problem 3 they vere filled. Sothe vater doesn't have any place to

4 BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER  They' ve got a 4 leach anynore. V¢ had that case a lot of tinmes in the

5 problem 5 subdi visions where they dug a hole for the basenent that fell

6 BOARD MEMBER RN BRINK - So | woul d be in favor of 6 and vent right into the ditches. And we struggled with it

7 it. 7 for years and years and finally went to curb section where

8 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SUTER - R ¢h? 8 they had to actually put stormsewer intorigit to an of

9 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLXK: | real Iy can't 9 outlet.

10 add anything. | would al so concur and I'min favor of it. 10 And ve had that problemfor years and years. And

1 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SCUTER  Then |"mgoing to 11 this probably dates back to that era. It sounds |ike that

12 call for amotion. | agree with you both, both of you, the 12 nust be -- it"s a 20-foot wide roadway?

13 same thing. V¢ got a problemhere and hopeful |y we can fix 13 ROAD OOMM SSI QN JERRY CLMANE Yes.

14 it. S -- 14 BOARD CHA RPERSON KEN SQUTER - o a 20-foot wi de

15 BOARD SECRETARY R CH VANDER KLXK: M. Chai rnan, 15 roadway with two foot ditches on either side, and I'll

16 1"l make the motion that the location, establishment and 16 guarantee you can't find any ditches anynore.

17 construction of the Swiss Valley Sub -- 17 M DAVID CGHECK  There are no ditches.

18 BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER  Siiss Mil | age. 18 BONRD CHA RN BILL CARRQY  So that's just a side

19 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER LXK | said val | ey, 19 note.

20 Swiss Millage is necessary and conducive to the public 20 | appreciate you coming in. | appreciate your

21 health, convenience or welfare. 21 problem And hopefully for the township we can get this

22 BOARD CHAl RPERSON KEN SUTER Do we have a second? 22 taken care of.

23 BOARD MEMBER RINBRINK | will second that. 23 Thank you for your tine.

24 BOARD CHAI RPERSON KEN SQUTER  Mbved and seconded 24 (BCD concl uded at 11:58 a.m)

25 that it is necessary for public health, convenience and 25
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#
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